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IDENTIFICATION 

Property Name (if any): Oliver C. Lockhart House     

Address: 342 Marsac Avenue            

Date of Construction: 1901      City, County: Park City, Summit County, Utah  

Architect/Builder, if known: unknown     Tax Number: PC-444    

Current Owner: Alan Giaquinto 

Legal Description (include acreage): LOT 11 & 12 BLK 54 PC SURVEY RWD219 KWD 278 IQC642 XWD203-560 

JQC116-136 6A268 YWD 82 M228-465 2052-1367 2159-360; 0.07 AC 

 

STATUS / USE 

Original Use: single dwelling Current Use: single dwelling   

Property Type:   National Register of Historic Places:  Evaluation:   

 Building    Eligible      Landmark Site 

 Structure    Ineligible      Significant Site                 

  Site     Listed, Date:     Non Historic   

 

DOCUMENTATION 

Photographs:   Research Sources: 

 Tax Photos    Sanborn Maps  City/ County Histories  Newspapers  

 Prints:    tax Card   Personal Interviews   Other: 

 Historic    Census Records  Park City Museum 
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DESCRIPTION 

Architectural Style: Pyramid (foursquare) type / vernacular style        

No. Stories: 1     

Number of Associated Structures:   Accessory building(s). #   Structure(s). #  

Condition:   Good   Fair    Poor   Uninhabitable/Ruin 

Location:  Original location  Moved (Date: ,original location:  ) 

Materials: (Describe the visible materials)  

Exterior Walls: The exterior walls are sheathed in a drop-novelty wooden siding. The gable-end of the entrance 

porch roof is clad in patterned wooden shingles that are both octagonal and a varied design     

Foundation: The 1958 tax card noted that the house did not have a foundation. The foundation is not 

visible in the photographs and therefore its material (or existence) cannot be verified      

Roof: The roof is flat-topped and hipped, a “deck” roof form, clad in asphalt shingles. The two brick 

chimneys appear to have lost their corbelled tops but remain on the roof, topped with metal shafts  

Windows/Doors: The early windows on the facade had leaded glass transoms and a large single pane 

below in vertical openings visible in the c. 1940 tax photo. The current façade window has a transom-sized 

section in clear glass on the bottom with the larger single pane above. Simple wooden casings remain as 

window surrounds. The front entry door has a large single light with patterned, colored leaded glass. It 

appears to be of the original period     

Additions:     Major   Minor   None 

Alterations:   Major   Minor   None      

Describe Additions/ Alterations (Dates):   

 

Essential Historic Form:  Retains       Does Not Retain 

 

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

(Briefly describe the property and its setting. Include a verbal description of the location; a general description of 

the property including the overall shape, number of stories, architectural style, materials, shape of roof; identify and 

describe any associated structures; identify any known exterior additions and/or alterations.) 

 

342 Marsac is a pyramid type house with a hipped and flat topped roof, which is unique for the area. The pyramid 

type is one of the main three types of houses built during the historic mining era and, of those three, is the most 
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recent occurring mostly during the end of that era. The unique roof, also called a “deck” roof, is covered with 

newasphalt shingles. The 1940s photo shows a shingled roofing material. There is a large gable extending out from 

the roof covering the central part of the porch over the door. The gable contains a square single pane window on a 

diagonal. The house is clad in drop wood siding which appears to be original, with the area in the gable being clad 

in shaped shingles, also appearing to be original. The windows on the front façade have been replaced, originally 

large single-pane with leaded transoms with single fixed-panes. However, the wood window frames and casings 

may be original. The wood door is likely original; it is shown in previous pictures as having leaded and colored 

glass, but currently it has been covered or painted over. There is a transom window above the door and the wood 

door frame and casing appear to be original. There was an additional door added to the northern part of the front 

façade, which had a small gabled roof above it, but this has since been removed and a mark on the siding remains 

from where the gable was and the door location has been covered by drop wood siding. The covered porch is 

supported by turned posts which appear to be the same as shown in the 1940s photo, though the posts against 

the house have been replaced with square posts. A small covered porch was added onto the south façade 

between 1907 and 1929, but it is in the rear of the building and minimally visible. A deck has been added onto the 

front, around the covered porch, which is surrounded by a simple wood railing. The overall form and materiality of 

the house remains intact and the house retains its historic character. 

 

SIGNIFICANCE 

Historic Era: 

 Settlement & Mining Boom Era (1868-1893) 

 Mature Mining Era (1894-1930) 

 Mining Decline & Emergence of Recreation Industry (1931-1962) 

 

Narrative Statement of Significance: 

(Briefly describe those characteristics by which this property may be considered historically significant.)  

 

Oliver C. Lockhart was living in a house on this lot when the 1898 Fire burned down most of Main Street and the 

surrounding area, including “About 15 dwellings on Rossie Hill.”  Lockhart had taken a $725 mortgage out on the 

property in 1887, indicating a probable date of construction on the house that burned in the fire. 

 

The current 342 Marsac was built in 1901, when the Park Record noted, “Oliver Lockhart is having a near four-

room cottage erected on Rossie Hill, as is also Harry Wonn.”  O.C. Lockhart was born December 8, 1856, in 

Pulaski, Lawrence, Pennsylvania. Upon moving to Park City, he worked as a manager of Utah Power & Light 

Company and was active on the town council and school board. His first wife Mary died in 1895 at a young age. 

He remarried Alice a couple years later. The Lockharts moved to Duchesne, Utah, in 1913. Oliver worked there for 

two decades before moving to Salt Lake City due to ill health. He died in that city on June 30, 1933.  

 

The Lockharts sold the house to Mary Bircumshaw and family in 1913 upon their move to the Uinta Basin. The 

Bircumshaws sold to Rose Graham Harding in 1921, and she lived in the house until her death in 1962. Rose 

Horlacher was born in Werrenberg, Germany, in 1876. Her first husband Isaac Graham died in 1929. She 
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remarried Alfred Harding in 1930, but he died in 1935. According to her obituary, Rose “was a well known resident 

of Park City for the past 35 years, making her home on Rossie Hill, where she and her family resided.”  

 

The house was sold as a part of Rose’s estate, and it has had a handful of owners since the historic period. It is 

currently owned by Alan Giaquinto 
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PHOTOS  

(Provide several clear historical and current photos of the property as well as locational maps indicating the 

location of the property in relation to streets or other widely recognized features.) 
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342 Marsac Avenue. Southwest oblique. November 2013. 

 

 

342 Marsac Avenue. West elevation. November 2013. 
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342 Marsac Avenue. Northwest oblique. November 2013. 
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MAPS 
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